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Some of the statements contained herein are forward looking statements about the company’s strategic plans. Although
the company believes that the expectations reflected in such statements are reasonable, the statements are not
guarantees as to future performance and undue reliance should not be placed on them.




SP MANWEB PLC
STRATEGIC REPORT

The directors present an overview of SP Manweb ple's structure, 2016/17 performance, strategic objectives and plans.

STRATEGIC OUTLOOK

The principal activity of SP Manweb plc (“the company”) is the ownership and operation of the electricity distribution
network within Cheshire, Merseyside, North Shropshire and North Wales. The network is used to distribute electricity,
which has been transmitted to grid supply points, for electricity supply companies for onward sale to their customers.
The company will continue with this activity for the foreseeable future.

The ultimate parent of the company is Iberdrola, S.A. ("Iberdrola") which is isted on the Madrid stock exchange. The
fmmediate parent of the company is Scottish Power Energy Networks Holdings Limited ("SPENH"). Scottish Power
Limited {“SPL"} Is the United Kingdom {“UK”} holding company of the Scottish Power Limited group {“ScottishPower"} of
which the company is a member.

The company is part of ScottishPower's Energy Networks business {“Energy Networks”}. Energy Metworks owns three
regulated electricity network businesses in the UK. The company and feliow subsidiary companies, SP Distribution plc
and SP Transmission plc, are “asset-owner companies” holding the regulated assets and Electricity Distribution and
Transmission licences of ScottishPower and are regulated monopoelies, They own and operate the network of cables and
power lines transporting electricity to around 3.5 million connected customers in Central and Southern Scotland,
Cheshire, Merseyside, North Shropshire and North Wales.

In addition, a further unregulated business, SP Power Systems Limited {"Power Systems”), provides asset management
expertise and conducts the day-to-day operation of the networks.

The asset-owner companies act as an integrated business unit to concentrate expertise on regulatory and investment
strategy and Power Systems implements work programmes commissioned by and agreed with the asset-owner
businesses. Strict commercial disciplines are applied at the asset-owner service provider interface, with Power Systems
operating as a contractor to the distribution and transmission businesses.

The company is a Distribution Network Operatar ("DNO”). The electricity distribution networks are regional grids that
transport electricity at a lower voltage from the national grids and embedded generators to industrial, commercial and
domestic users.

The company Is a natural monopoly and is governed by The Office of Gas and Electricity Markets {“Ofgem”) via a
regulatory price control. The primary objective of the regulation of the electricity networks fs the protection of
customers’ interests while ensuring that demand can be met and companies are able to finance their activities. Price
controls are the method by which the amount of allowed revenue is set for network companies over the period of the
price control. Price control processes are designed to cover the company’s efficient costs and allow it to earn a
reasonable return, provided the company acts in an efficient manner, delivers value for customers and meets Ofgem
targets.

The company faces a considerable challenge over the next decade to secure the significant investment required to
maintain reliable and secure networks. To ensure that this investment is delivered at a fair price for customers, Ofgem
introduced the RIIO (Revenue=Incentives+innovation+Outputs) framework. It is a performance based model, with an
elght year price control period, that places a much greater emphasls on network companies playing a full role in
developing a sustainable energy sector and delivering services that provide value for money for customers. A key feature
is agreement on the set of outputs that companies are expected to deliver as part of the framework and the provision of
incentives to reduce network costs for both current and future customers.

Thus the key strategies for the company until the end of the RIIO-ED1 price control review period and beyond are to:

ensure public safety and the safety of employees;

deliver improved customer service through more efficient processes, systems and higher first-time resolution;
deliver value for money to customers through improved security of supply and network performance;

maximise the financial benefit to be obtained from the available incentives to deliver returns at, or in excess of,
allowed regulated returns;

o achieve investor objectives on sustainable returns on investment; and

o facilitate the transition to a low carbon economy by connecting distributed generation and by exploring the
opportunities presented by the emerging Distribution System Operator {“DS0") model,

a & o o
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STRATEGIC QUTLOOK continued

On 31 March 2017, the company successfully completed the second year of the price control RIIO-ED1 that will run until
March 2023. The Distribution Annual Performance Report for 2016/17 will be published later this year. That report will
provide all of the company's stakeholders with a comprehensive view of how the company is performing against the
commitments made in its RHO-ED1 business plan.

Followlng the publication of SP Energy Networks DSQ Vision document in October 2016, the company has engaged
heavily with both industry and the UK Government. The company has also joined an Energy Networks Association
{"ENA") working group, which will seek to inform the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (“BEIS")
/Ofgem on an industry view of the roles and responsibilities of a future DSO In the UK. BEIS/Ofgem are fully supportive of
this working group and sit on both the Steering Group and Advisory panels.

During 2016/17 Energy Networks won three high profile industry awards. At the Utility Week Industry Awards the
Customer Service Team were winners in the Customer Care category for their work with vulnerable customers. At the
Scottish Green Energy Awards Energy Networks won the Best Innovation Award for the Dynamic Cable Rating System
and jointly won the Judges Award for the Beauly to Denny transmission line.

In line with ScottishPower's strategic objectives and its regulatory obligations, the company is maintaining its significant
investment in the UK energy network. Over the [ast ten years, Energy Networks has invested around £5.3 billion in its
transmission and distribution networks, and during the next ten years, Energy Networks currently plans to invest a
further £5.7 billion to modernise and improve service to customers. Energy Networks’' ten year investment plans are
reviewed annually In detail to ensure that they are aligned with and continue to support UK Government energy policy.

Announcements in the past few years by the UK Government on funding programmes have led to some renewables
developers scaling back future activity. Some developers have requested acceleration in connection dates, while other
projects have been deferred or cancelled. These developments have been analysed carefully, resulting in updated
projections of volumes and expenditure for the Energy Networks business. The external environment will continue to be
monitored and the impact of any changes in trends will be considered in future forecasts. In addition to this the company
has experienced a significant uptake in applications for battery storage projects In response to National Grid’'s Firm
Frequency Respanse {“FFR") tender. The company will continue to monitor this but the market seems to be responding
quickly and in volume to any incentives on storage applications.

The company is mindful that some of its assets are critical national infrastructure. On 1 November 2016, the UK
Government published its National Cyber Security Strategy 2016 to 2021, The recent ransomware attack which affected
institutions and individuals across the world in May 2017 served as reminder of the increasing threat of cyber crime. The
company liaises with UK Government agencies to ensure that any potential threats and risks are assessed and mitigated.
In circumstances where potential risks are identified, the company takes steps to enhance hoth the physical security of
its assets and the security of its associated IT and communications systems.

In September 2016, the UK Government published its National Flood Resilience Review, which was set up following the
floods experienced in some areas of the UK in December 2015, The company is working with BEIS and other stakeholders
to ensure that improvements in flood defences for electricity infrastructure are effectively implemented.

Energy Networks is continuing to develop and train staff for a ‘smarter’ future and replienish its ageing workforce from
the communities that Energy Networks serve so that the investment made in recruitment and training continues to
deliver In the long-term. The challenge of replacing an ageing workforce in Energy Networks and across the UK Power
Sector In the coming years will be significant. Energy Networks will continue to work closely with schools and Further and
Higher Education institutions to ensure that it can attract high calibre individuals into exciting development and career
opportunities. During the regulatory year 2016/2017 Energy Networks recruited 10 Graduates and 36 Apprentices, in
addition, internal recruits have been enrolled on the Trainee Engineer and Technical Craftsperson programmes to
increase the engineering and technical capabilities of the front line teams.
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OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Business Activities

In accordance with Distribution Licence Condition 44 {Regulatory Accounts) the following details are provided for the
prescribed distribution business activities:

Distributlon Directly
Use of System  remunerated
Total (DUOS) services Metering  De minimus
For the year ended 31 March 2017 Notes £m £m fm £m £m
Revenue (a) 348.7 341.2 - 7.5 -
Procurements (a) {17.5) {17.5) - - -
GROSS MARGIN 331.2 323.7 - 7.5 -
NET OPERATING EXPENSES (72.9) {71.8) - {1.1) -
Net personnel expenses {0.9) (0.9) - - -
Staff costs fa {0.9)] {0.9)] -1 -1 -1
Net external expenses {72.0) {70.9) - {1.1) -
External services (a) (94.0} {84.6) {8.2) (1.1) (0.1}
Other aoperating income {a) 22.0 13.7 8.2 - 0.1
Taxes other than income tax (a) (15.0) {15.0) - - -
EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST, TAX, PEPRECIATION
AND AMORTISATION 243.3 236.9 - 6.4 -
Depreciation and ameortisation charge, allowances
and provisions (a) (90.1) {85.0) - {5.1) -
QOPERATING PROFIT {a) 153.2 151.9 - 1.3 -
Property, plant and equipment asset addlitions {b) 218.2 215.8 - 2,4 -

{(a}) Aspresented In the income statement on page 20.
(b} Aspresented within Note 5 on page 28.
{c) These activities are not considered by the company as segments as defined by IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’.

The financial position of the company at the Regulatory year end was satisfactory. The majority of revenue generated by
the company is subject to regulation by the Gas and Efectricity Markets Authority (“GEMA”).

The company continued to focus on cost control with efficiency improvements allowing increased operating activity to
be managed within the existing cost base.

The company’s operating profit was £153.2 million, a decrease of £40.3 million compared to the prior year, and net profit
was £99.2 million, a decrease of £40.4 million compared to the prior year,

Revenue has decreased by £30.8 million compared to the prior year, primarily as a result of lower base revenues
provided under RIIO-ED1.

Procurements have decreased by £1.3 millien primarily due to lower Low Carbon Network Fund costs
Staff costs are broadly in line with prior year.

External services have increased by £5.9 million primarily as a result of an increase in indirect cost recharges, corporate
costs, insurance, consultancy and other costs.

Other operating income decreased by £1.9 million primarily as a result of lower rechargeable income.
Taxes other than income tax and net finance costs are all broadly in line with prior year.

Depreciation and amortisation charge, allowances and provisions has increased by £2.8 million mainly as a result of the
increased cost base for depreciation.

The income tax expense increased as a result of the reduced impact on the deferred tax charge of future tax rate
reductions.

Overall, the directors are satisfied with the level of business and the year-end financial position.

Net capital investment
ScottishPower’s investment strategy is to drive the growth and development of its regulated businesses through a
balanced programme of capital investment. The company earns allowed returns on this extensive capital investment

programme,
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OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE continued

Net capital investment continued

Net capital investment for the year was £174.3 million (2016 £177.6 million) consisting of fixed asset additions of £218.2
million (2016 £217.1 million) less capital contributions received of £43.9 million (2016 £39.5 million). Property, plant and
equipment additions in relation to growth of the network amounted to £67.1 million {2016 £65.8 million} less capital
contributions of £43.9 million {2016 £39.5 million). This investment defivers new connections to the distribution natwork
and increases in network capacity. Property, plant and equipment additions in relation to modernisation of the network
to maintain safety, security and reliability of supplies, amounted to £151.1 million (2016 £151.3 million). The scale of
nvestment is consistent with the eight-year price review period allowed capital expenditure programme.

The tables below provide key non-financial performance indicators relating to the company's operational assets and
operational performance during the year ended 31 March 2017:
Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March
Operattonal assets Note 2017 2016
Franchise area (km?) 12,200 12,200
System maximum demand [MW)* (8 3,022 3,014
Distributed energy (GWh)* 15,211 15,449
Length of overhead lines (circuit km) 20,053 20,064
Length of underground cables (circuit km) 26,953 26,793

* Megawatts {(“MW"), Gigawatt hours ("GWh”}

{a) S$ystem maximum demand value for the regulatory year ended 31 March 2017 is finalised at 3,022, The value for the regulatory year ended 31
March 2016 was finalised at 3,014.

Ofgem requires all licensees operating electricity distribution systems to report annually on their performance. Statistics

remain provisional untll they are audited and subsequently published by Ofgem. Consequently, the provisional statistics

contained in the table below may differ to the statistics published by Ofgem. The company expects the 2016/17

Electricity Distribution Quality of Service Report to be published online at www.ofgem.gov.uk from November 2017.

Actual Target Actual Target

Yearended  Year ended Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

Operational performance Notes 2017 2017 2016 2016

Quality of service

Customer minutes lost {"CML") (a) 37.4 44,2 336 45.6

Customer interruptions ("CI") (b} 38.2 381 30.1 38.3

Average time off supply (minutes) 48 i16 111 119

Electricity supply available 99.99% 99.99% 99.99% 99.99%
Customer performance : (c)

Broader customer service measure - [nterruptions 8.74 8.2 8.86 8.2

Broader customer service measure - Connections 8.68 8.2 8.43 8.2

Broader customer service measure - General enquiries 9.3 8.2 9.24 8.2

Energy ombudsman {customer complaints} {d) 2 - i -
Total number of Energy Ombudsman findings against the {d)

licensee (financial, non-financial and both} - - - -

{a) CMLis reported as the average number of minutes that a customer Is without power during a year due to power cuts that last for three minutes or
more.

{b) Clare reparted as the number of tustomers, per 100 customers, that are affected during the year by power cuts that last three minutes or more.

{c} Customer performance comprises three components: a customer satisfaction survey, a complaints metric and stakeholder engagement. Further
detail is given below and on page 5.

{d) The Energy Ombudsman Services is an independent body that monitors and adjudicates on complaint cases.

Underlying CML and Cl, quoted in the table above, are key statistics, which measure the reliability and security of supply
typically provided to customers. The company is focused on minimising CML and Cl to out-perform the System
Performance {IIS) targets agreed with Ofgern.
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OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE continued

The underlying CML and Cl are 37.4 and 38.2 respectively for the year ended 31 March 2017. These values will be
validated and confirmed by Ofgem and will be published by them from November 2017. During 2016/17 the supply of
energy to customers was disrupted by one major storm event which met Ofgem’s ‘exceptional event’ exclusion criterion;
a wind and gale storm in February 2017, During 2015/16 there was also one exceptional storm event. The CML and Cl
figures for Actual Year ended 31 March 2016 were confirmed by Ofgem in their final directions, issued in October 2016,
and were published in Ofgem’s RIIO-EDT Annual Report 2015/16.

Customer Performance: All customer contacts relating to interruption of power supplies, requests and delivery of new
connections to the network and any other general enquiries are passed to an independent research agency on a weekly
basis (for all DNQ's). The independent agency randomly samples customers each week to ask a series of customer
satisfaction questions. Sampled customers give a score out of ten and the average annual score for each of the three
categories drives each year’s performance in this incentive. A reward is received if the average score is above 8.2 out of
10 and anything below 8.2 attracts a financial penafty. The customer satisfaction performance for each of the three
elements in 2016/17 is shown In the table on page 4. ’

Complaints Performance: This is a ‘penalty-only’ incentive. Companies are measured on their complaints performance
over a number of key metrics; volume of complaints resolved in one day, volume of complaints resolved in 31 days,
volume of repeat complaints and the number of complaints referred to the Energy Ombudsman which have been ruled
against the company, The Energy Ombudsman Services are an independent body that menitors and adjudicates on
complaint cases. The Energy Ombudsman performance is shown in the table on page 4 for 2016/17 performance., The
wider complaints performance will not be published until Autumn 2017,

Stakeholder Engagement and Customer Vulnerability: This is a ‘reward-only’ incentive and is an annual assessment of
the company’s Stakeholder Engagement activities. An annual submission is provided to Ofgem in April in respect of the
previous regulatory year and Is assessed by Ofgem and an independent pane! {including social assessors) in fuly and
scored out of ten in order to determine a financial reward. The results for 2016/17 will therefore not be known until this
assessment is completed. The submissions set out the company's strategy, engagement and outputs for stakeholder
engagement and customer vulnerability.

The company Is committed to maintaining a safe and reliable network with high performance during extreme weather
events. Consequently, during the year to 31 March 2017, £31 million was invested to refurbish or rebuild the overhead
line network. In addition £10 million was invested in tree cutting activities. Both of these investments will contribute to
improving performance of distribution assets and minimising disruptions during inclement weather.

The long-term safety and reliability of the company’s electricity distribution netwaorks and its impact on customers are
key business priorities. Whilst working to improve reliability and restoration, the networks are designed and operated in
a way that ensures the safety of the public and employees, with minimal number and duration of supply Interruptions.

PROJECTS

In the regulatory year 2016/17, the company continued to deliver its investment plans in line with the RIIO-ED1
regulatory contract. These projects contribute to the company’s strategy for a safe, secure and efficient network. These
works are broadly categorised as works to enable network growth and reinforcement and asset modernisation.

Network growth and reinforcement

The growth of the network has two drivers; to increase the capability of the asset base to manage future foad demands,
and to accommodate new connections for generators and customers. The company continues to support local authority
and private developers’ enquiries through the provision of new electrical connections, network alterations and, in
conjunction with key stakeholders, connection of new generation plant ta the network.

During the regulatory year the company completed and progressed various network growth projects, including those
noted below:

+ The connection of 30 MW of wind generation at Tir Gwynt in Mid Wales was energised in September 2016.

« Site work continued on establishing a new 132 kilovolts (“kV”) indoor substation at Fiddlers Ferry in order to
support Increasing demand for network connection in the Cheshire area; this project is on schedule for
completion in 2017,

¢ Reinforcement of the Lostock area of Mid Cheshire.

» Planning consents for the connection of 137 MW of wind generation in North Wales are in place; construction
work has commencad and final delivery is scheduled for completion in mid-2018,

s Design and planning activities commenced on a new 132 kv circuit to support the reinforcement of the Isle of
Anglesey.
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PROIJECTS continued
Network growth and reinforcement continued
¢ Environmental surveys and engineering works in North Shropshire (Whitchurch) which involves installing 15 km of
132 kV overhead line {“OHL”) and a new grid transformer.

Asset modernisation

* Alongside the reinforcement and extension of the network, the company continued its extensive RIIQ-ED1 programme to
renew its ageing infrastructure of plant, cables and overhead lines. These targeted interventions are designed to renew
‘end of life’ assets with modern equipment to improve the condition, performance and resilience of the network. Some
of the projects completed during the year include:

* Replacement of grid transformers completed at Caergeiliog, Newtown Speke and Southport.

¢ Replacement of eleven 33 kV transformers at several sites including the replacement of seventeen 33 kV circuit
breakers,

* The replacement of over 280 poor condition and obsolete ring main units and over 80 11 kV circuit breakers at the
company’s substations.

¢ The replacement of 3 km of 33 kV underground cable in Merseyside.

¢ Works to modernise and improve the resilience of the extensive OHL network continued throughout 2016/17
including:
o the replacement of 40 km of 132 kV overhead cable; 17 km of which was on the tower line between Hartford

and Crewe in Cheshire;

o the refurbishment of over 700 km of 33/11 kV OHL;
o the complete rebuild of 60 km of 33/11 kv OHL mainly in Wales and Cheshire; and
o the removal of over 11,900 clearance defects as part of the low ground clearance programme.

* A number of projects in areas of Visual Amenity within Wales are in progress and 1.3 km of 11 kV cable was
undergrounded at Abersoch and Anglesey.

« To enable the Installation of smart meters across the licence area, the company intervened in nearly 8,000 cases
of difficulties encountered at customer meter positions, over a total installation of 130,000 smart meters.

The company continued its strategic deployment of wide ranging Innovation Funding incentive (“IFI} projects including
new and existing projects with academic, industrial and community partners to enhance the existing and future electrical
networks, Funding has been awarded through Network Innovation Competition (“NIC") for the Angle-DC project which
will demonstrate a novel network reinforcement technique by converting an existing 33 kV alternating current (“AC")
circuit to direct current (“DC”} operation.

These and other works undertaken by the company in the previous year demonstrate its commitment to deliver the
plans it set out for the RIO-ED1 period over the remaining six years.

LIQUIDITY AND CASH MANAGEMENT

Cash and net debt

Net cash flows from operating activities decreased by £29.1 million to £266.8 million for the year, as detailed on page 22,
As detailed in the table below, net debt Increased by £20.1 million to £1,060.0 million. The increase In net debt is due to
an Increase of £128.7 million in on-demand group loans payable plus external loan amortisation of £0.4 million
recelvable offset by repayments of £45,0 million on the long-term loans with Scottish Power UK plc (“SPUK"), repayment
of the bank overdraft of £0.3 million and an increase in cash of £13.7 million.

2017 2016
Analysis of net deht Notes fm £m
Cash {a) 13.7 -
Loans payable to iberdrola group companies {b) (727.1) (693.4)
External loans payable (b) {346.6) (346.5)
Net debt (1,060.0) (1,039.9}

{a}) Asdetailed on the balance sheet, refer to page 19.
{b} Asdetailed in Note 14 on page 32.

Capital and debt structure

The company is funded by a combination of debt and equity in accordance with the directors' objectives of establishing
an appropriately funded business consistent with the requirements of the Utilities Act 2000 and the objectives of the
Iberdrola group. All the equity is held by the company’s immediate parent undertaking, SPENH.
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Capital and debt structure continued

Treasury services are provided by SPL. ScottishPower has a risk policy within treasury and financing which is designed to
ensure that the company's exposure to variability of cash flows and asset values due to fluctuations in market interest
rates and exchange rates are minimised and managed at acceptable risk levels, Further details of the treasury and
interest policy for ScottishPower and how it manages them is included in Mote 4 of the most recent Annual Report and
Accounts of SPL.

Liquidity and maintengnce of investrent grade credit rating

The directors confirm that the company remains a going concern on the basis of its future cash flow forecasts and that it
has sufficient working capital for present requirements. It is anticipated that the company will continue to have a level of
liquidity at least sufficient to maintain an investment grade credit rating. The directors consider that, should it be
necessary, sufficient funding will be made available to the company to continue operations and to meet liabilities as they
fall due. Further details of the going concern considerations made by the directors of the company are set out in Note
27.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Energy Networks is compliant with relevant health and safety legislation, such as The Health and Safety at Work Etc. Act
1974, The Electricity, Safety, Quality and Continuity Regulations {(“ESQCR") 2002 and the Elactricity at Work Regulations
1989. Further, Energy Networks' management systems are independently externally assessed and certificated to the
latest international standards, notably the Occupational Health and Safety Advisory Services Standard 18001 (“OHSAS
18001").

Compliance with the above legislation and standards is considered the minimum requirement, with the ultimate aim
being zero harm to employees, contractors and members of the public. Energy Networks is committed to improving
public safety and awareness through its behaviours, investments in operational integrity and comprehensive public
safety education programmes.

Energy Networks' plan for continuous improvement s iliustrated by both internal and external management system
assessments returning positive findings. The commitment to promptly investigate incidents to identify root causes
remains steadfast and is given the highest priority with a Panel of Inquiry established whenever there is a significant
incident. In addition to a focus on safety, Energy Networks continues to put the “health” into health and safety, with
robust risk based health surveillance programmes for employees together with more general well-being initiatives.

Energy Networks works closely with the industry trade body, the Energy Networks Association, to ensure that good
practice is shared and innovation is promoted.

The table below provides key information relating to performance of Energy Networks with regard to health and safety:

Actual Target

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

Notes 2017 2017

Total recordable incident rate {a) 0.36 0.23
Lost time accidents 7 7
Occupational health monitoring {b) 113% 90%
Audit and inspection programme completion (<) 109% 100%

{a} Total recordable incident rate is the summation of any incidents, be they (ost time, medical treatment or leading to some work restriction per
100,000 hours werked.

{b} Occupational health monitoring is a measure of how Energy Networks meets its planned forecasts for those staff assessed as at risk,

{c] Audit and inspection programme completion is the measurement of the planned internal management system audits and Energy Networks
compliance inspections, both against Energy Networks' own staff and contracting partners.

During the year there has been a continued focus on employee involvement in health and safety with corporate memory

Safety Stand downs being held covering specific issues that are topical and specifically targeting root cause and learning

from incidents. The stand-downs provide a forum for raising awareness and allow employees to openly debate and

improve areas by focusing on changing behaviours.

Public safety engagement and education promotion has continued with a particular focus and engagement with the
agricultural community.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

ScottishPower's strategy, which is adopted by the company, is to conduct business in @ manner benefiting customers
through balancing cost and risk while delivering shareholder value and protecting ScottishPower's performance and
reputation by prudently managing the risks inherent in the business. To maintain this strategic direction ScottishPower
develops and implements risk management policies and procedures, and promotes a robust control environment at all
levels of the organisation.

Further details of ScottishPower's governance structure and risk management are provided in Note 4 of the Annual
Report and Accounts of SPL.

The principal risks and uncertainties of ScottishPower, and so that of the company, which may impact the current and
future operational and financial performance and the management of these risks are described helow:
SCOTTSHPOWER T s e —_—

RISK

RESPONSE

Material deterioration in the relatively stable and predictable
UK regulatory and political environment, including any
sudden changes of policy, or new initiatives in the retail
market outside the framework of the Competition and
Markets Authority {"CMA") investigation outcome.

Positive and transparent engagement with all appropriate
stakeholders to ensure that long-term regulatory stability
and political consensus is maintained and public backing is
secured for the necessary investment in the UK energy
system. Providing stakeholders with evidence of the risks of
ad hoc intervention in markets.

Impacts arising from the UK decision to leave the European
Union {"EU") or market reactions to events during the
negotiation. These impacts could include further
depreciation in the value of Sterling and other financial
instruments. In the longer term there could be negative or
positive changes in the UK economy and in the potitical and
regulatory environment in which the company operates,

In addition to monitering ongoing developments related to
“Brexit” the treasury risk management policy is in place to
hedge financial risks which are the most prevalent in the
short term. Any longer term impact on the UK economy and
its impact on the group and specific business units will be
managed in line with developments.

A major health and safety incident in the course of
operations could impact staff, contractors, communities or
the environment.

ScottishPower’s Health and Safety function provides
specialist services and support for the businesses in relation
to health and safety. A comprehensive framework of health
and safety policy and procedures, alongside audit
programmes, is established throughout ScottishPower, which
aim to ensure not only continuing legal compliance but also
drive towards best practice in all levels of its health and
safety operations.

Breach in cyber security and unwanted infiltration of the
ScottishPower IT infrastructure by internal and external
parties.

Implementation of a cyber-risk policy which provides the
framework for mitigation. Proactive approach to identifying
where ScottishPower is vulnerable and addressing these
points through technical solutions. Educating company
employees as to how behaviour can reduce this risk.
Embedding cyber security in all projects where appropriate,

Additional principal risks and uncertainties of the Energy Networks business, and so that of the company, which may
impact the current and future operational and financial performance and the management of these risks are described

below:

NETWORKS 5t

RISK

RESPONSE

Failure to deliver the Distribution outputs agreed with the
Regulator in the current price control.

Mitigating actions include formulating detailed investment,
resource, outage and contingency plans supported by an
extensive procurement strategy. Good communication and
co-ordination of activities across the business is integral to
success, complemented by a comprehensive monitoring
regime that provides early warning of potential issues.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES continued

NETWORKS i B

RISK RESPONSE

Security of Supply due to potential asset failures alongside  |Risk based asset investment programme in place, business

reduced generation capacity. continuity and emergency planning well established
including Black Start. “Strategic Spares” policy in place.

Failure to protect customer service performance. Well-established customer service processes to respond to
power loss, including storm readiness. Priority Service
Register to protect vulnerable customers in the event of
power loss. Implemeantation of a single emergency number
to route customer queries.

Inability to recruit or retain an appropriately skitled A Strateglc Work Force Planning and Implementation plan

workforce. that incorporates; a} retirement profiles with demographics;
b} one year ahead Strategic Recruitment; and c} ten year
Strategic Recruitment plan. Identification of business critical
roles and succession planning.

Other factors affecting financial performance include economic growth and downturns, and abnormal weather, both of
which impact revenues, cash flows and investment.

During the year to 31 March 2017 the ScottishPower governance structure was supported by risk policies approved by
the Board of Directors of Iberdrola and adopted by the Board of Directors of Scottish Power Limited (“the ScottishPower
Board”). Further information is provided in the ‘identification and evaluation of risks and control objectives’ section of
the Corporate Governance Statement on page 15,

The company manages financial risk exposure in three key areas: revenue risk, treasury management and credit risk,

(a) Revenuerisk
The majority of the revenue generated by the company is subject to regulation by GEMA. Regulatory controls include
price controls which restrict the average amount, or total amount, charged for a bundle of services.

(b) Treasury management

The company is exposed to various financial risks including llquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk.
Treasury services are provided by SPL. Liquidity risk is managed by Iberdrola Group Treasury, which is responsible for
arranging banking facilities on behalf of ScottishPower., ScottishPower’s financing structure is determined by its position
in the wider Iberdrola group and interest rate risk managed on an iberdrola group wide basis. Exposure to fluctuating
interest rates is managed by issuing a proportion of debt at fixed rates, refinancing risk is managed by issuing debt with
various maturity dates. Foreign exchange risk in relation to procurement contracts is managed through use of foreign
exchange forward contracts.

(c) Creditrisk

The company has credit guidelines to mitigate against credit risk. The company employs specific eligibility criteria in
determining appropriate limits for each prospective counterparty and supplements this with letters of credit and
collateral where appropriate. Credit exposures are then monitored on a daily basis,

fnsurance

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the company's main insurance strategy was to procure cover from external insurance
markets. The company conducts periodic reviews of the business requirements and evaluates alternative risk mitigation
strategies to ensure that the most effective and economic cover is secured.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

47/

~ Scott Mathieson
Director
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SP MANWEB PLC
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their report and audited Regulatory Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2017, References to
‘ScottishPower’ below apply fully to ‘the company’.

INFORMATION CONTAINED WITHIN THE STRATEGIC REPORT
The directors have chosen to disclose information on the following, required by Companles Act 2006 to be included in
the Directors’ Repart, within the Strategic Report, found on pages 1 to 9:

¢ information on financial risk management and policies; and

¢ information regarding future developments of the business.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The net profit for the year amounted to £99.2 million (2016 £139,6 million). The aggregate dividends paid during the year
amounted to £26.0 million {2016 £45.0 million).

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT AND REGULATION

Throughout its operations, ScottishPower strives to meet, or exceed, relevant legislative and regulatory environmental
requirements and codes of practice. A more extensive description of how the ScottishPower group addresses
environmental requirements can be found in the most recent Annual Report and Accounts of SPL.

EMPLOYEES

Employment regulation

ScottishPower has well-defined policies in place throughout its businesses to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
related codes of practice. These policies cover a wide range of employment issues such as disciplinary, grievance,
harassment, discrimination, stress, anti-bribery and ‘whistleblowing' and have been brought together in the Code of
Ethics of Iberdrola and its group of companies (which also outlines expectations for employees’ conduct),

Training

ScottishPower has a continuing commitment to training and personal development for its employees with over 2,700
{2015 2,500) training events and over 139,000 hours {2015 169,000) undertaken in the year ended 2016. Much of the
training is focused on health and safety and technical training ensuring field staff are safe and competent. In addition
ScottishPower recruits over 100 craft and engineering trainees annually who undertake a formal, structured training
programme, leading towards a recognised apprenticeship or formal engineering qualification, Team leaders and
managers also participate in core management skills training and there are management development pregrammes and
modules aimed at increasing our leadership capability.

Employee feedback and consultation

Employee feedback is recognised as key to driving engagement within ScottishPower and in 2016 the group again carried
out its annual employee engagement survey, ‘The LOOP’, This year there was a significant increase in the response rate
from employees with 75% of employees across the group providing feedback. The overall engagement score increased to
76% in 2016 which is a positive reflection of how employees feel about working for ScottishPower.

All ScottishPower businesses recognise the importance of taking action in response to employee feedback. Action plans
were developed following the LOOP survey in 2016 and focus on three key areas across ScottishPower — recognising the
day to day achievements of our employees, improving face to face communication and creating a positive employee
experience for all employees.

In addition to employee feedback, ScottishPower regularly consults with employees and their representatives via a
variety of channels, including monthly team meetings, business conferences, health and safety committees and
employee relations forums.

Equality and diversity

ScottishPower recognises the importance of difference and respects individuality as part of its ongoing commitment to
promoting equality and diversity. ScottishPower also understands that diversity goes beyond legally compliant policies
and practices and Includes a focus on creating an innovative, integrated organisation where people feel valued, inspiring
them to perform at their best.

ScottishPower have a Diversity and Inclusion Governance Group whose objective is to drive the Diversity and Inclusion
action plan with key stakeholders across the organisation to ensure that diversity is embedded into ScottishPower’s
working policies and practices.
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SP MANWEB PLC
DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued

EMPLOYEES continued

Equality and diversity continued

Activities over 2016 included E-tearning and training on diversity and unconscious bias to raise the awareness of
employees and key stakeholders. ScottishPower also received external recognition for ScottishPower’s fiexible and agile
working practices to support working families and its development and employment programmes for young people.

ScottishPower is committed to driving gender diversity in the energy sector by encouraging women into leadership roles
and engineering careers, not only seeking to develop its diverse and inclusive workforce but take active steps to address
the deepening skilis shortage in the sector. During 2016 ScottishPower joined the Women’s Engineering Society and
Powerful Women, sponsored the Top 50 Women in Engineering list and supported National Women in Engineering day.

Employment of disabled persons

In support of the policy on Equality and Diversity (above), ScottishPower expects all employees to be treated with
respect and has supporting policy guidance on People with Disabilities and Reasonable Adjustments to help ensure
equality of employment opportunity for people with disabilities. The aim of these guidelines is to establish working
conditions that encourage the full participation of people with disabilities, which may be achieved through activities such
as making adjustments and/or adaptations to premises, enabling access to the full range of recruitment and career
opportunities including the provision of specialist training and the retention of existing staff who are affected by
disabllity, through rehabilitation, training and reassignment. ScottishPower also works with support organisations, such
as Business Disability Forum, which provide support, guidance and sharing of best practice to enable companies to
hecome disability confident.

Employee health and wellbeing
ScottishPower promotes and supports the physical and mental health and wellbeing of its employees through a
programme of health promotion and information run by its occupational health department.

Employee volunteering

ScottishPower prides itself in being a good corporate neighbour, providing support to the communities it serves in each
of its businesses. Volunteering is central to community involvement and ScottishPower has an excellent track record in
this area. ScottishPower's company-wide Volunteering Policy has been actively utilised by employees during 2016. This
policy gives all registered volunteers, on an annual basis, an opportunity to take an additional one day's paid leave, to be
used as a volunteering day.

COMMUNITY RELATIONSHIPS

Community relationships

Building the trust of communities has been part of ScottishPower's core values for many years, ScottishPower has a
significant presence in many communities and aims to conduct its activities respeonsibly, in a way that is considerate to
local communities and makes a positive contribution to society.

Cormmunity consultation

ScottishPower engages with communities across its operations, where new and modernising developments are planned.
The key areas where ScottishPower’s business interacts with the community include the siting of new facilities such as
wind farms, the presence of distribution and transmission lines and routine maintenance and upkeep work.
ScottishPower takes a proactive approach to providing good and accurate information from pre-planning through to
construction.

ScottishPower maintains strong relationships with local communities by working with community groups, elected
representatives, Interest groups and individuals ensuring that those affected by the work are aware of what is happening
in their area in advance, allowing communities to have their say. This Is of particular importance to the business as a
developer, owner and operator with longstanding relationships in many of the communities in which it works.

A variety of methods of consultation are used to keep In touch with the needs and concerns of the communities
potentially affected. ScottishPower’s community consultation processes include representation at community meetings,
presentations and forums such as Public Information Days. ScottishPower’s facilities host visits from community groups,
maintain a number of visitor centres and run Local Liaison Committees which provide a forum for discussion hetween
local management teams and community representatives.

Many of ScottishPower’s assets, such as wind farms and pylons, are situated on land not owned by ScottishPower,
therefore it is important that effective policies are in place to ensure that the safety and integrity of the plant is
maintained, while respecting the needs of the landowner, the local community and the general public. Energy Networks
and those working on its behalf adhere to a Grantor's Charter which sets out guidance of commitment to grantors and
has been prepared in consultation with key stakeholders.
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SP MANWESB PLC
DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued

COMMUNITY RELATIONSHIPS continued

Community consultation continued

Energy Networks has reorganised its business around geographical districts to get closer to its customers, communities
and stakeholders; focussing on customer service, winning the trust of communities and engaging with its stakeholders.

POLITICAL DONATIONS AND EXPENDITURE

ScottishPower is a politically neutral organisation. It is subject to the Political Parties, Elections and Referendums Act
2000, which defines political “donations” and “expenditure” in wider terms than would be commonly understood by
these phrases. During the regulatory year ended 31 March 2017, ScottishPower paid a total of £22,010 (2016 £20,000)
for the sponsorship of conferences and events — activities that may be regarded as falling within the terms of the Act,
The recipients of these payments were:

s The Conservative Party £7,000 (2016 £6,000)

¢ The Labour Party £7,000 (2016 £7,000}

+ The Scottish Naticnal Party £8,010 (2016 £7,000}

The above amounts were for sponsored receptions at the 2016 conferences of the above parties. These occasions
provide an important opportunity for ScottishPower to represent its views on a non-partisan basis to politicians from
across the political spectrum and were open to everyone attending the conference, including party members, non-
governmental organisations, the media and trade unions. The payments do not indicate support for any particular party.

DIRECTORS
The directors who held office during the year were as follows:

Wendy Barnes
Elizabeth Haywood
Scott Mathieseon
Frank Mitchell
Stephen Stewart

Wendy Barnes and Elizabeth Haywood are independent non-executive directors,

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY
In terms of the company’s Articles of Association, a qualifying third party indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of
ali the directors of the company and of associated companies and has been in force during the regulatory year.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITOR
Each of the directors in office as at the date of this Directors’ Report and Accounts confirms that:

o 5o far as he or she is aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditor is unaware;
and

& he or she has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself or
herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditor is aware of that
information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the Companies
Act 2006.

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young LLP were re-appointed as auditor of the company for the year ended 31 March 2017.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

A ——

Scott Mathieson
Director

il ‘Ja,(;,g/ 2017
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SP MANWEB PLC
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The ultimate parent company is Iberdrola, S.A. which is listed on the Madrid stock exchange.

As a gulding principle, the company adopts the principles and rules contained in the most widely recognised good
governance recommendations and, in particular, has taken as reference the Uniform Good Governance Code for Listed
Companies approved by the National Securities Market Commission of Spain.

ScottishPower, the UK operation of lberdrola, $.A., operates on divisional lines and the activities of the company fall
within the Transmission and Distribution business within the Energy Metworks Regulated Business (“Regulated
Business”).

ADMINISTRATIVE, MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY BODIES

Board and management meetings

During the regulatory year, the company was governed by a Board (“the SP Manweb Board”} consisting of five directors
bringing a broad range of skills and experience to the company, two of which are independent non-executive directors.
The immediate parent of the company is SPENH. The SPENH Board of Directors (“SPENH Board”) is responsible for the
effective day to day operation and management of the Regulated Business within ScottishPower, in accordance with the
strategy set by the ScottishPower Board.

Oversight is provided at ScottishPower group level by the ScottishPower Board {which includes four independent non-
executive directors), other than on those matters reserved for the SPENH Board (which includes two independent non-
executive directors, who also reside on the SP Manweb Board).

In addition te formal SP Manweb and SPENH Board meetings, which are convened as required, the directors and other
senior managers within the Regulatory Business hold monthly management meetings which review strategy, operational
performance and risk issues on behalf of both the company and other companies within the Regulated Business,

The directors of the company are subject to annual evaluation of their performance in respect of their executive
responsibilities as part of the performance management system which is in place throughout ScottishPower.

SPENH Board
The SPENH Board comprised the Chairman Armando Martinez Martinez and six other directors as at 31 March 2017.

The directors of SPENH and their classification are shown below.

Armando Martinez Martinez Chairman

Frank Mitchell Chief Executive Officer
Antonio Espinosa de los Monteros

José lzaguirre Nazar

Scott Mathieson

Nicola Connelly {resigned 1 February 2017)
Wendy Barnes Independent non-executive director
Elizabeth Haywood Independent non-executive director

SPENH Board meetings were held on five occasions during the year under review. Attendance by the directors was as
follows:

Armando Martinez Martinez Attended all meetings
Frank Mitchell Attended all meetings
Antonio Espinosa de los Monteros Attended all meetings
José lzaguirre Nazar Attended all meetings
Scott Mathieson Attended all meetings
Nicola Connelly Attended three meetings
Wendy Barnes Attended all meetings
Elizabeth Haywood Attended all meetings
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SP MANWEB PLC
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT continued

Administrative, management and supervisery bedies continued

ScottishPower Audit and Compliance Committee {“ACC”)

The ACC, a permanent internal body, has an informative and consultative role, without executive funciions, with powers
of information, assessment and presentation of proposals to the ScottishPower Board within its scope of actien, which is
governed by the Articles of Assoclation of Scottish Power Limited and by the Terms of Reference of the ACC. The ACC's
responsibilities include:

s monitoring the financial reporting process for ScottishPower;

e monitoring the effectiveness of the ScottishPower's internal control, internal audit, compliance and risk
management systems; and

o monitoring the statutory audit of the annual and consolidated accounts of ScottishPower.

The ACC comprises three members, including two independents, as indicated in the table below. The ACC met five times
during the year under review. The members of the ACC and their attendance record are shown in the table below.

Professor Sir James McDonald {Chairman) External independent, attended all meetings
Professor Susan Deacon External independent, attended all meetings
Juan Carlos Rebollo Liceaga Attended four meetings

fherdrola Appointments and Remuneration Committees

There is no separate Appointments or Remuneration Committee within ScottishPower. Instead appointments and
remuneration matters relevant to ScottishPower and the company are dealt with by the lberdrola Appointments
Commitee {"IAC"} and the Iherdrola Remuneration Committee ("IRC"}. The members of the [AC are:

Maria Helena Antolin Raybaud (Chairperson) External independent
Ifigo Victor de Oriol lbarra Other External
Angel JesUs Acebas Paniagua External independent

The members of the IRC are;

Inés Macho Stadler (Chairperson) External independent

Ifiige Victor de Oriol lbarra Other External

Santiago Martinez Lage External independent (resigned 31 March 2017)
Juan Manuel Gonzélez Serna External independent {(appointed 31 March 2017)

The 1AC has the power to supervise the process of selection of directors and senior managers of the Iberdrola group
companies, The IRC has the power to assist the Board of Directors in the determination and supervision of the
compensation policy for the above-mentioned persons.

INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year under review, the directors of the company had overall responsibility for establishing and maintaining an
adequate system of internal controls within the company and they participated in the review of internal controls over
financial reporting and the certification process which took place on a ScottishPower group-wide basis. The effectiveness
of the system at ScottishPower group level was kept under review through the work of the ACC. The system of internal
contro! is designed to manage rather than eliminate risk. In pursuing these objectives, internal control can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

A risk and control governance framework is in place across ScottishPower. The risk management framework and internal
control system is subject to continuous review and development. The company is committed to ensuring that a proper
control environment is maintained. There is a commitment to competence and integrity and to the communication of
ethical values and control consciousness to managers and employees. HR policies underpin that commitment by a focus
on enhancing job skills and promoting high standards of probity among staff. In addition, the appropriate organisational
structure has been developed within which to control the businesses and to delegate authority and accountability,
having regard to acceptable levels of risk. The company's expectations in this regard are set out in ‘ScottishPower Code
of Ethics’, a policy document which aims to summarise some of the main legal, regulatory, cultural and business
standards applicable to all employees. This document has been distributed to all employees of the company.
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SP MANWEB PLC
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT continued

INTERNAL CONTROL continued

ScottishPower has a set of Anti-Bribery and Corruption policies and procedures, Crime Prevention and Anti-Fraud
guidelines, and Speaking Out guldelines in place. Together with the Code of Ethics, these policies, procedures and
guidelines provide mechanisms to ensure that instances of fraud, bribery, corruption or other criminal or unethical
behaviour are identified, reported and investigated. The Speaking Out guidelines incorporate a confidential external
reporting service operated by an independent provider. These guidelines, which are applicable to employees and
suppliers of the company, cover any Incident, issue, behaviour or practice which does not comply with The Cade of
Ethics, including fraud, bribery, theft, misuse of company resources and conflicts of interest. There is also a process in
existence within ScottishPower whereby all members of staff may report any financial irregularitfes to the Audit and Risk
Supervision Committee of Iberdrola.

IDENTIFICATION AND EVALUATION OF RISKS AND CONTROL OBJECTIVES

During the year under review the ScottishPower governance structure was supported by risk policies adopted by the
ScottishPower Board. These risk policies are adopted by the ScottishPower Board on an annual basis with the Energy
Network specific policy also being adopted by the SPENH Board. ScottishPower business risk assessment teams and the
independent group risk management function support the ScottishPower Board in the execution of due diligence and risk
management. [n addition, the SPENH Board is responsible for ensuring that business risks are adequately assessed,
monitored, mitigated and managed.

ScottishPower’s strategy, which is adopted by the company, is to conduct business in a manner benefiting customers
through balancing cost and risk while delivering shareholder value and protecting ScottishPower’s performance and
reputation by prudently managing the risks inherent in the business. ScottishPower develops and implements risk
management policies and procedures, and promotes a robust control environment at all [evels of the organisation.

The company identifies and assesses the key business risks associated with the achievement of its strategic objectives.
Any key actions needed to further enhance the control environment are identified, along with the person responsible for
the management of the specific risk.

CAPITAL INVESTMENT

Capital investment proposals are considered by the Regulated Business’ Investment Review Group {“IRG"}, Membership
of the IRG includes the Business Executive Team members including representation from the Corporate finance and legal
functions. In addition, significant capital investment proposals are referred to the SPENH Board and an operating
committee which comprises senior executives from the Iberdrola group.

MONITORING AND CORRECTIVE ACTION

The management team of the company reviews, on a monthly basis, the key risks facing the business, the controls,
action plans and monitoring procedures for these. A risk report is produced for review and challenge at the monthly
inanagement meetings.

This is a key tool in ensuring the active management of risks. The operation of the control and menitoring procedures
are raviewed and tested by ScottishPower’s internal audit function with a direct reporting line to the Audit, Risk and
Supervision Committee of Iberdrola and the ACC.

AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

The Audit, Risk and Supervision Committee of Iberdrola, which comprises non-executive directors, is responsible for the
nomination of the external auditors. This committee and the firm of external auditors have safeguards to avoid the
possibility that the auditors' objectivity and independence could be compromised.

Where the work to be undertaken is of a nature that is generally considered reasonable to be completed by the external
auditors for sound commercial and practical reasons, including confidentiality, the conduct of such work is permissible
provided that all necessary internal governance requirements have been met.

Social, environmenta! and ethical matters

Social, environmental, and ethical {*SEE”) matters are included in the overall risk and contral framework and in the Risk
Report which is reviewed at the monthly management meetings. As such, regular account is taken of the strategic
significance of SEE matters to the company, and the risks and opportunities arising from these issues that may have an
impact on ScottishPower’s short-term and long-term values are considered.

Further information regarding the SEE matters can be found in the ‘Corporate Responsibility’ section of the
ScottishPower website www.scottishpower.com,
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SP MANWEB PLC
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
in respect of the Regulatory Accounts and compliance with Standard Licence Condition 44

Standard Condition 44 of the Electricity Distribution Licence requires the directors to prepare Regulatory Accounts, for
each regulatory year, which presents fairly the assets, liabilities, reserves and provisions of, or reasonably attributable to,
the company and of the revenues, costs and cash flows of, or reasonably attributable to, the company for the year. . The
directors confirm that these Regulatory Accounts comply with Standard Licence condition 44 in all aspects except with
respect to the nature of the audit opinion. Ofgem have consented to this having regard to the guidance contained in the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (“ICAEW”) Technical Release TECH02/16AAF. In preparing the
Regutatory Accounts, the directors are required to:

¢ selact suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

¢ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

o state whether the Accounts comply with International Financial Reporting Standards {“IFRSs"} as adopted by the
EU, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

e prepare the Regulatory Accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statemants comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and Standard Condition 44 as applicable. They are also responsible for the system of internal
control, for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
to the Gas and Electricity Markets Authority (“the Autherity”) and to SP Manweb plc (“the company”)

We have audited the Regulatory Accounts of the company for the vear ended 31 March 2017 (the "Regulatory
Accounts”} which comprise the Balance Sheet, Income Statement and Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement
of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement, and the related notes 1 to 27.

These Regulatory Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the basis of preparation and accounting policies set
out on pages 23 to 26.

This report is made, on terms that have been agreed, solely to the company and the Authority in order to meet the
reguirements of Standard Condition 44 of the Electricity Distribution Licence (“the Regulatory Licence”). Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the company and the Authority those matters that we have agreed to
state to them in our report, in order (a) to assist the company to meet its obligation under the Regulatory Licence to
procure such a report and (b) to facilitate the carrying out by the Authority of its regulatory functians, and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the Authorlty, for our audit wark, for this report or for the opinions we have formed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE AUTHORITY DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 16, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the Regulatory Accounts. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the Regulatory
Accounts in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), except as stated in the ‘Scope of the
audit of the Regulatory Accounts’ section below, and having regard to the guidance contained in ICAEW Technical
Release TECH 02/16AAF ‘Reporting to Regulators on Regulatory Accounts’. Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE REGULATORY ACCOUNTS

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Regulatory Accounts sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the Regulatory Accounts are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company's circumstances
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by the directors. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Corporate Report &
Regulatory Accounts to identify material inconsistencies with the audited Regulatory Accounts and to identify any
information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by
us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent misstatements or Inconsistencies we
consider the implications for our report,

We have not assessed whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the company where
these are laid down by Standard Condition 44 of the company’s Regulatory Licence. Where Standard Condition 44 does
not give specific guidance on the accounting policies to be followed, our audit includes an assessment of whether the
accounting policies adopted in respect of the transactions and balances required to be included in the Regulatory
Accounts are consistent with those used in the preparation of the statutory financial statements of the company.
Furthermore, as the nature, form and content of Regulatory Accounts are determined by the Authority, we did not
evaluate the overall adequacy of the presentation of the information, which would have been required If we were to
express an audit opinion under International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland).

OPINION ON THE REGULATORY ACCOUNTS
In our opinien the Regulatory Accounts:

o have been properly prepared in accordance with Standard Condition 44 of the company’s Regulatory Licence and the
accounting policies.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER - BASIS OF PREPARATION

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to the fact that the Regulatory Accounts have been prepared in
accordance with Standard Condition 44 of the company’s Regulatory Licence and the accounting policies set out in the
statement of accounting policies. The nature, form and content of Regulatory Accounts are determined by the Authority.
It is not appropriate for us to assess whether the nature of the information being reported upon is suitable or
appropriate for the Authority’s purposes. Accordingly we make no such assessment.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
to the Gas and Electricity Markets Authority (“the Authority”) and to SP Manweb plc (“the company”) continued

EMPHASIS OF MATTER - BASIS OF PREPARATION continued

The Regulatory Accounts are separate from the statutory financial statements of the company and have been prepared
under the basis of IFRSs. Financial Information other than that prepared on the basis of IFRSs does not necessarily
represent a true and fair view of the financial performance or financial position of a company as shown in statutory
financial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

OTHER MATTERS

Our opinion on the Regulatory Accounts is separate from our opinion on the statutory financial statements of the
company for the year ended 31 December 2016 on which we reported on 30 March 2017, which are prepared for a
different purpose. Our audit report in relation to the statutory financial statements of the company {our “statutory
audit”) was made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006, Our statutory audit work was undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we
are required to state to them in a statutory audit report and for no other purgoese. In these circumstances, to the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom our statutery audit report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior
consent in writing,

TNANT t\j wf
Ernst & Young LC

Statutory Auditor
Glasgow

N4 j 2017
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SP MANWEB PLC
BALANCE SHEETS
as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016

2017 2016
Notes £m £m
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets 4 - -
Property, plant and equipment 2,766.9 2,638.4
Property, plant and equipment in use 5 2,500.9 2,471.0
Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction 5 266.0 167.4
Financial assets 0.1 0.1
Investments in subsidiaries 6 0.1 0.1
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 2,767.0 2,638.5
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables 7 50.9 59.5
Cash 8 13.7 -
CURRENT ASSETS 64.6 59.5
TOTAL ASSETS 2,831.6 2,698.0
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Of shareholders of the parent 1,022.9 949.7
Share capital 10,11 300.0 300.0
Share premium 11 3.3 3.3
Other reserves 1 6.0 6.0
Retained earnings i1 713.6 640.4
TOTAL EQUITY 1,022.9 949.7
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred income 12 423.8 392.8
Provisions 13 0.8 -
Bank borrowings and other financial liabilities 922.9 944.5
Loans and other borrowings 14 922.9 944.5
Deferred tax liabilities 15 158.3 159.1
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,505.8 1,496.4
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions 13 0.1 -
Bank borrowings and other financlal liabilities 150.8 95.4
Loans and other borrowings 14 150.8 95.4
Trade and other payables 16 143.3 136.5
Current tax liabilities 8.7 20.0
CURRENT LIABILITIES 302.9 251.9
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,808.7 1,748.3
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,831.6 2,698.0

Approved by the Board on/ﬁﬁ 2017 and signed on its behalf by:

A~

cott Mathieson
Director

The accompanying Notes 1 to 27 are an integral part of the balance sheets as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016.
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SP MANWEB PLC
INCOME STATEMENTS AND STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016

2017 2016
Notes £m £m
Revenue 348.7 379.5
Procurements {17.5) {18.8)
GROSS MARGIN 331.2 360.7
NET OPERATING EXPENSES {(72.9) {65.2)
Net personnel expenses {0.9) {1.0}
Staff costs 17 (0.9 | {1.0}]
Met external expenses {72.0) {64.2)
External services (94.0} (88.1)
Other operating income 22.0 23.9
Taxes other than income tax 18 (15.0) (14.7)
EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST, TAX, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION 243.3 280.8
Depreciation and amortisation charge, allowances and provisions 19 {90.1) {87.3)
OPERATING PROFIT 153.2 193.5
Gains on disposal of nan-current assets 0.2 -
Finance income 20 0.1 0.7
Finance costs 27 {41.2) {42.1)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 112.3 152.1
Income tax 22 (13.1) {12.5)
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 99.2 139.6

Net profit for both years is wholly attributable to the equity holders of SP Manweb plc.

All results relate to continuing operations.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 27 are an integral part of the income statements and statements of comprehensive income
for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016,
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SP MANWEB PLC
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016

Ordinary
share Share Other Retained Total
capital premiuim reserves earnings equity
£m £m £m Em £m
At 1 April 2015 300.0 33 6.0 545.8 855.1
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 139.6 139.6
Dividends - - - {45.0) {45.0)
At 1 April 2016 300.0 33 6.0 640.4 949.7
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 99.2 99.2
Dividends - - - {26.0) {26.0)
At 31 March 2017 3060.0 3.3 6.0 713.6 1,022.9

Total comprehensive income for both years comprises net profit for the respective years.

The accompanying Notes 1to 27 are an integral part of the statements of changes in equity for the years ended 31

March 2017 and 31 March 2016.
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SP MANWEB PLC
CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016

2017 2016
£m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 112.3 152.1
Adjustments for:
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 89.0 86.9
Change in provisions 0.9 -
Transfer of assets from customers (12,9) (12.0)
Finance income and costs 41,1 41.4
Write-off of non-current assets 0.5 0.4
Changes in working capital:
Change in trade and other receivables 8.6 11.4
Change in trade and other payables 10.9 4.1
-Provisions paid - (0.3)
Assets received from customers 41,5 37.0
Income taxes paid (25.2) {25.8)
Interest received 0.1 0.7
Net cash flows from operating activities (i) 266.8 295.9
Cash flows from investing activities
Investments in property, plant and equipment (213.9) (222.6)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.2 -
Net cash flows from investing activities (ii) (213.7) (222.6)
Cash flows from financing activities
Decrease in amounts due to tberdrola group companies (95.0) (22.0)
Dividends paid to company's equity holders (26.0) {45.0)
Interest paid (46.8) {(36.8)
Net cash flows from financlng activities {iii} (167.8) (103.8)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (i)+(it)+(iii) {114.7) (30.5)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (0.7} 29.8
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year {115.4) (0.7}
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year comprises:
Cash 13.7 -
Bank ovedraft - (0.3)
Payables due to Iberdrola group companies - loans (129.1) (0.4
Cash flow statement cash and cash equivalents (115.4) (0.7

The accompanying Notes 1 to 27 are an Integral part of the cash flow statements for the years ended 31 March 2017 and

31 March 2016,
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SP MANWEB PLC
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
31 March 2017

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

A COMPANY INFORMATION

SP Manweb plc ("the company”), registered company number 2366937, is a private company [imited by shares,
incorporated in England And Wales and its registered address is 3 Prenton Way, Prenton, CH43 3ET.

B BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE ACCOUNTS

The Accounts have been prepared in accordance with Standard Condition 44 of the company’s Regulatory Licence and
international Accounting Standards (“IAS”), IFRSs and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
{“IERIC"} Interpretations {collectively referred to as IFRS), as adopted by the EU as at the date of approval of these
Accounts and which are mandatory for the financial year ended 31 March 2017. The company’s accounting reference
date is 31 December to match that of its ultimate parent undertaking, tberdrola, S.A.. Standard Condition 44 of the
Electricity Distribution Licence requires the directors to prepare Regulatory Accounts, for each regulatory year, with the
same content and format as the most recent statutory accounts of the company. The references made to the financial
year within these Regulatory Accounts refer to the year from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017. Consequently the Corporate
Report and Regulatory Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2017 are separate from the Annual Report and Accounts of
the company which have been prepared for the year ended 31 December 2016. The Accounts are prepared in
accordance with the Accounting Policies set out in Note 2.

The Accounts contain information about SP Manweb plc as an individual company and do not contain consolidated
financial information as the parent of subsidiary companies. The company is exempt under Section 400 of the Companies
Act 2006 from the requirements to prepare consolidated Accounts as it and its subsidiary undertakings are included by
full consclidation in the consolidated Accounts of its ultimate parent, tberdrola, 5.A., a company incorporated in Spain.

The company has one operating segment for management reporting purposes.

C  ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In preparing these Accounts, the company has applied all relevant 1AS, IFRS and IFRIC Interpretations which have been
adopted by the EU as of the date of approval of these Accounts and which are mandatory for the financial year ended 31
March 2017,

For the regulatory year ended 31 March 2017, the company has applied the following standards and amendments for the
first time:

Standard Note
* Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Staterments: Disclosure Initiative' (a)
* Amendments to |AS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ and I1AS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’ — ‘Clarification of Acceptable {a)
Methads of Deprectation and Amortisation’
+ Amendments to IAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ and |AS 41 ‘Agriculture’ — ‘Bearer Plants’ {a)
* Amendments to IAS 27 ‘Separate Financial Statements: Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements' {a)
» Amendments to IFRS 11 ‘Joint Arrangements: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations’ {a)
» Annual lImprovements to IFRS Standards 2012-2014 Cycle {a)
+ Amendments to IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements', IFRS 12 'Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities' (a)

and IAS 28 ‘Investments in Assaciates and Joint Ventures' - 'Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidated
Exception'

{a) Theapplication of these pronouncements has not had a materlaf Impact the company's accounting policies, financlal position or performance.

23




SP MANWEB PLC
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued
31 March 2017

1
C

BASIS OF PREPARATION continued
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS continued

The following new standards and amendments to standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board {“IASB”} but have an effective date after the date of these financial statements, or have not been endorsed by the
EU, thus have not been implemented by the company:

1ASH effective
date {for periods Planned date of
commencing application by the

Standard Notes on or after) company

+ Amendments to 1AS 12 ‘income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax (b}, {c}, (d) 1 January 2017 1 April 2018
Assets for Unrealised Losses'

+« Amendments to |AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative’ {b), (c), (d) 1 January 2017 1 April 2018

+ Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014 — 2016 Cycle {b), (c), (e} 1 January 2017 & 1 April 2018

‘ 1January 2018

¢ |[FRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ {f 1January 2018 1 April 2018

+ [FRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' {including {g) 1 January 2018 1 April 2018
Amendments to IFRS 15 ‘Effective date of IFRS 15") Y

« Clarifications to {FRS 15 'Revenue fram Contracts with Customers' {c), (g) 1 January 2018 1 April 2018

+ Amendments to |AS 40 'Investment Property: Transfers of {b}, (¢} 1 January 2018 1 April 2018
investment Property'

* Amendments to [FRS 2 'Share-based Payiments: Clarification and “{b), (9 iJanuary 2018 1 April 2018
Measurement of Share-based Paymaent Transactions’

+ Amendments to IFRS 4 'Applying IFRS & Financial [nstruments with (b), (<) 1 January 2018 1 April 2018
1FRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

« [FRIC 22 'Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ (b), {€) 1 January 2018 1 April 2018

+ [FRS 16 ‘Leases’ (c), {h) 1 January 2019 1 April 2019

+ [FRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’ (b), {c) 1January 2021 1 April 2021

+ [FRS 14 'Regulatory Deferral Accounts' (b}, {c), (i} 1January 2016 To be decided

+ Amendments to IFRS 10 'Consolidated Financial Statements' and (b}, {c), &) Deferred " To be decided
IAS 28 'Investments in Assoclates and Joint Ventures' ~'Sale or indefinitely

Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
loint Venture'

(o)
{ch
()

(e)

{g)

{h)

0]
i

The future application of this pronouncement is not expected to have a material Impact on the company's accounting policies, financiat position
or performance.

This pronouncement has not yet been endorsed by the EU,

Despite the 1ASB effective date of 1 January 2017, this pronouncement has yet to be endorsed by the EU {expected 2017). The endorsement
notice will be reviewed for spacific guidance but in the absence of further informaticn it is anticipated that the company will apply this
proncuncement from the accounting pertod following endorsement i.e. 1 April 2018,

This pronouncement includes amendments to three standards. The amendments to IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards' and 1A% 28 "Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' have an effective date of 1 January 2018. The amendments to IFRS
12 'Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities' have an effective date of 1 January 2017, Despite this, the pronouncement has yet to be endorsed by
the EU [expected 2017). The endorsement notice will be reviewed for specific guldance but in the absence of further Information it is anticipated
that the company wlill apply this proncuncement fram the accounting period following endorsement f.e. 1 April 2018.

The company s currently analysing the impact of Implementing IFRS 9 ‘Financlal Instruments' ('IFRS 9') which s effective for the company from 1
April 2018, Following a preliminary analysis, the company provisionally expects that financlal assets will be measured at amortised cost, except for
equity instruments and derivative financial instruments that will be measured at fair value. The company intends to apply the general approach to
the recognition of expected credit losses to all financial assets; except for trade receivables and leases to which the simplified approach will be
taken regardless of whether they contain a significant financing component, The probabllity of default is not expected to be significant given the
high credit quality of the financial assets. It is anticipated that more hedging instruments and hedged items will qualify for hedge accounting
under IFRS 9. Thls analysis will continue in 2017,

The company is cusrently analysing the impact of implementing IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' and the assoclated
amendments and clarifications, all of which are effective for the company as from 1 April 2018, Foliowling a preliminary analysis of income earning
arrangements no significant impact is expected. This analysis will continue in 2017,

The company Is cucrently analysing the impact of implementing [FRS 16 'Leases® (IFRS 16°) which is effective for the company from 1 April 2019
The company’s principal leases relate to Jand and property. Most of these leases are currently classified as operating leases under 1AS 17 ‘Leases’.
The company expects to recognise ‘right-of-use’ assets and corresponding tease liabllities. The value of these Is expected to be greater than the
future minimum lease payments disclosed In Note 5{b). The company expects to take the exemptions in relation to short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets, The company does not intend fo bring leases of intangible assets within scope of IFRS 16, On transition, the modified
retrospective method Is expected to be applied and the new lease definition applied to all existing contracts at thls point. The campany Js
currently modifying its IT systems In crder to adapt to the new regquirements. This analysis wil continue in 2017,

The endorsement process of this interim standard has not been launched as the EU has decided to wait for the final standard to be issued.

The IASB set the effective date of this pronouncement as periods commencing on or after 1 January 2016, However, in December 2015, the 1ASB
postponed the effective date indefinitely pending the outcome of its research project on the equity method of accounting. The EU endorsement
process for this pronouncement has heen postponed, awaiting a revised exposure draft from the 1ASB. The effective date wifl be amended in due
course. “
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SP MANWEB PLC
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued
31 March 2017

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in preparing the company’s Accounts are set out below

REVENUE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS {COMPUTER SOFTWARE COSTS)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
LEASED ASSETS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

TRANSFER OF ASSETS FROM CUSTOMERS

TAXATION

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

TS TTmgow>

A REVENUE

Revenue comprises charges made to customers for use of the distribution network. Revenue includes accruals in respect
of unbilled income refating to units transferred over the nétwork established from industry data flows and for other
rechargeable work completed but not yet billed. Revenue excludes Value Added Tax. Revenue consists entirely of sales
made in the UK.

B INTANGIBLE ASSETS {COMPUTER SOFTWARE COSTS)

The costs of acquired computer software are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software and are amortised on a straight-line basis over their operational lives. Costs directly associated with the
development of computer software programmes that will probably generate economic benefits over a period in excess
of one year are capltalised and amortised, on a straight-line basis, over their estimated operaticnal lives, Costs include
employee costs relating to software development and an appropriate proportion of relevant overheads directly
attributable to bringing the software into use. Amortisation of computer software is over periods of up to four years.

C PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost and is generally depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
operational lives of the assets, Property, plant and equipment includes capitalised employee costs and other directly
attributable costs. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of major qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. Reviews are
undertaken annually of the estimated remaining lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment. Residual
values are assessed based on prices prevailing at each balance sheet date.

Land is not depreciated. The main depreciation periods used by the company are as set out below.

Years
Distribution facilities 40
Meters and measuring devices 2-10
Other facilities and other items of property, plant and equipment 3-25

N IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At each balance sheet date, the company reviews the carrying amount of its property, plant and eguipment and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the
company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

E LEASED ASSETS

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at
inception date; whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset(s) or the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset(s), even If that right is not explicitly specified in the arrangement. For arrangements
entered into prior to 1 April 2004, the date of inception is deemed to be 1 April 2004 in accordance with the transitional
requirements of IFRIC 4 ‘Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease’.
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SP MANWEB PLC
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued
31 March 2017

2  ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

£ LEASED ASSETS continued

The company classifies leases as finance leases whenever the lessor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

F o FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Financial assets catégorised as trade and other receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less
an allowance for impairment of doubtful debts. Allowance for doubtful debts has been estimated by management,
taking into account future cash flows, based on past experience and assessment of the current ecanemic
environment within which the company operates.

{b} Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand which is readily convertible into a known
amount of cash without a significant risk of change in value. In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
exclude term deposits which have a maturity of more than 90 days at the date of acquisition and include bank
overdrafts repayable on demand the next business day and the net of current loans receivable and payable from
iberdrofa group companies.

(¢} Financlal Habilities categorised as trade payables are recognised and carried at original inveice amount.

(d) All interest bearing loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of directly attributable transaction
costs. Interest hearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

G TRANSFER OF ASSETS FROM CUSTOMERS
Transfers of assets from customers are credited to ‘Deferred income’.

Pursuant to the applicable industry regulations, the company receives contributions from its customers for the
construction of grid connection facilities, or is assigned such assets that must be used to connect those customers to a
network and provide them with ongoing access to a supply of goods or services, or both. As the installation received is
considered to be payment for angolng access to the supply of the goods and services, it is credited to deferred income
and released to the income statement over the estimated operational lives of the related assets.

H TAXATION
The company’s liability for current tax is calculated using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on the difference between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profits
ftemporary differences), and Is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or credits
can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period In which the
liability is settled or the asset realised based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date. Deferred tax is charged in the income statement, except where it relates to iterns charged or credited to equity (via
the statement of comprehensive income), in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity and is shown in the
statement of comprehensive income.

I RETIREMENT BENEFITS

ScottishPower operates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution retirement benefit schemes in the UK. SP
Manweb plc is a participating company in these arrangements, and the contributions for the defined benefit schemes are
based on pension costs across all the participating companies. The company is unable to identify its share of the
underlying assets and liabilities in the defined benefit schemes, as the scheme administrators do not caleulate these
separately for each of the various companies participating in the schemes and therefore treats these schemes as if they
were defined contribution schemes. The amount charged to the income statement in respect of pension costs is the
contributions payable In the period.

26




SP MANWESB PLC
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued
31 March 2017

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

in preparing the Accounts in conformity with IFRSs, the company is required to make estimates and assumptions that
impact on the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities of the company. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. The critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty is discussed below
and should be read in conjunction with the fuli statement of Accounting Policies at Note 2.

IMPAIRWMIENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

In certain circumstances, property, plant and equipment are required to be reviewed for Impairment. When a review for
impairment is conducted, the recoverable amount is assessed by reference to the net present value of the expected
future cash flows of the relevant Cash Generating Unit {“CGU”), or disposal value if higher, The discount rate applied is
based on ScottishPower's weighted average cost of capital with appropriate adjustments for the risks associated with the
CGU., Estimates of cash flows involve a significant degree of judgement and are consistent with management's plans and
forecasts.

At 31 March 2017, the carrying value of property, plant and equipment amounted to £2,766.9 million (2016 £2,638.4
million)

4  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer
software
Year ended 31 March 2016 Note £m
Cost:
At 1 April 2015 4,5
Disposals (0.3)
At 31 March 2016 {a) 4.2
Amortisation:
At 1 April 2015 4.4
Disposals (0.2)
At 31 March 2016 4.2
Net book value!
At 31 March 2016 -
At 1 April 2015 0.1
Computer
software
Year ended 31 March 2017 Note fm
Cost:
At 1 April 2016 4.2
Disposals (4.2)
At 31 March 2017 (a) -
Amortisation:
At 1 April 2016 4.2
Disposals (4.2}

At 31 March 2017 -

Net book value:
At 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 -

{a} The cost of fully amortised computer software stili in use at 31 March 2017 was £nil (2016 £4,2 million).
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SP MANWEB PLC
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued
31 March 2017

5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(a) Movemeants in property, plant and equipment

oner items
of property,
plant and
Meters and Other equipment Plantin
Distribution measuring facilitias inuse progress
facilities devices {Note (i)} [Note {il}} {Note (iil)) Total
Year ended 31 March 2016 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost:
At 1 April 2015 3,112.0 128.2 7.5 6.3 186.9 3,440.9
Additions (Note (iv)) 2.4 2.4 - - 2123 2171
Transfers from in progress to plant in use 2313 - 0.1 - {231.4) -
Disposals {9.3) (0.9) - (0.1) - {10.3)
Impairment (Note (v)) - - - (0.4) [0.4)
At 31 March 2016 3,336.4 129.7 7.6 6,2 167.4 3,647.3
Depreciation:
At 1 April 2015 833.9 96.2 2.2 01 B 932.4
Depreciation for the year 79.7 6.3 0.5 - - 86.5
Disposals (9.0} {0.9) - {(0.1) - (10.0)
At 31 March 2016 904.6 101.6 2.7 - - 1,008.9
Net book value;
At 31 March 2016 2,431.8 28.1 4.9 6.2 167.4 2,638.4
At 1 April 2015 2,278.1 32.0 53 6.2 186.9 2,508.5
The net book value of property plant and equipment at 31 March 2016 is analysed as follows:
Property, plant and equipment in use 2,431.8 281 4.9 6.2 - 2,471.0
Property, plant and equipment in the course of
construction - - - 167.4 167.4
2,431.8 28.1 4.9 6.2 167.4 2,638.4
Lner fems
of property,
plant and
Meters and Other eguipment Plantin
Distribution measusing facilities inuse progress
facllities devices {Note (1)) {Note (il}) [Note (iii}) Total
Year ended 31 March 2017 £m £m £m £m £m £
Cost:
At 1 April 2016 3,336.4 129.7 7.6 6.2 167.4 3,647.3
Additions (Note (iv) 2.4 1.5 - - 2143 218.2
Transfers from in progress to plant in use 115.7 - - - (115.7} -
Disposals {8.6) {21.9) - - {30.5)
At 31 March 2017 3,445.9 109.3 7.6 6.2 266.0 3,835.0
Depreciation:
At 1 April 2016 904.6 101.6 2.7 - - 1,008.9
Depreciation for the year 83.5 5.1 0.4 - - 89.0
Disposals {7.9) (21.9) - - - (29.8)
At 31 March 2017 980.2 84.8 3.1 - - 1,068.1
Net book value: ‘
At 31 March 2017 2,465.7 24.5 4.5 6.2 266.0 2,766.9
At 1 April 2016 2,431.8 28.1 4.9 6.2 167.4 2,638.4
The net baok value of property plant and equipment at 31 March 2017 is analysed as follows:
Property, plant and equipment in use 2,465.7 24.5 4.5 6.2 - 2,500.9
Property, plant and equipment in the course of
construction - - - 266.0 266.0
2,465.7 24.5 4,5 6.2 266.0 2,766.9

{i} The category "Other facitities” principally comprises other technical installations and communications equiprnent.

(i} The category "Other items of property, plant and equipment in use™ principally comgrises land.

(i} The category "Plant in progress" principally comprises distribution facilities in the course of construction.

{iv) Additions of £215.8 million {2016 £214.7 millton) were purchased from asset management entity Power Systems, as noted within Note 25.

{v) The impairment charge of £0.4 mitllon made during the year ended 31 March 2016 related to the write off of a transfermer. The cost was
charged to ‘Depreciation and amortisation charge, allowances aad provistons” In the Income statement.

{vi) The cost of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment still in use at 31 March 2017 was £153.2 million {2016 £164.3 miilion).

{vli} Included within the cost of property, plant and equipment are assets in use not subject to depreciation, belng land of £6.0 million {2016 £6.0

million).
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SP MANWEB PLC
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued
31 March 2017

5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continued
(b) Operating lease arrangements

2017 2016
{i) Operating lease commitments £m £m
Between one and five years 0.1 0.1
2017 2016
{ii) Operating lease receivables £m £m
The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
Within one year 0.1 0.1
Between one and five years 0.1 0.2
0.2 0.3
(c} Capital commitments
2017 2016
fm £m
Contracted but not provided 205.8 245.1
6 INVESTMENTS
Subsidiary
undertakings Cther
shares investments Total
£000 £000 £000
At 1 April 2015, 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 75 26 101
Registered office
and country of
incorporation Equity Interest
Substdiaries Principal actlvity {see Note (a)} Notes 2016 2015
Manweb Services Limited Operation of a private electricity GY] {b) 100% 100%
distribution network
Manweb Nominees Limited In liquidation 8] {b)(c) 99% 99%
Manweb Pension Trustees Limited In liquidation {8} (d) 49.5% 49.5%
Manweb Share Scheme Trustees Limited  In liquidation {8} {e) 99.5% 99.5%

(a) The registered offices of the substdiaries are as listed below, along with their countries of incorporaticn. Where the registered office Is in England,
the country of incorporation is deemed to be “England and Wales”.
{A) 3 Prenton Way, Prenton, CH43 3ET, England.
{8} Jjohnston Carmichael, 107-111 Fleet Street, London, ECAA 2AB

{b} The investment in this company Is a direct holding of SP Manweb plc at 31 March 2017.

{c} The remaining 1% of share capital in this company is held by ancther ScottishPower company.

{d} At 31 March 2017, 50% of the shares in this company were held by Manweb Nominees Limited and the rematning 50% were held by another
ScottishPower company.

(e) At 31 March 2017, 50% of the shares in this company were held directly by SP Manweb plc and the remaining 50% were held by Manweb
Nominees Limited,

7 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2017 2016
Note £m fm

Current receivables;
Receivables due from Iberdrola group companies - trade 10.1 11.7
Trade receivables and accrued income {a) 40.3 47.5
Other tax receivables 0.5 0.3
50.9 59.5

{a) Trade recejvables are stated net of allowance for impairment of doubtful debts of £0.5 million (2016 £0.1 million). Provistons for doubtfut debts
have been estimated by management, taking into account future cash flows, based on prior experience, ageing analysis and an assessment of the
current economic environment within which the company operates, The income statement impact of change in bad debt for the year to 31 March
2017 is £0.4 million (2016 £nil).
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SP MANWEB PLC
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued
31 March 2017

7 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES continued

() At 31 March 2017 trade receivablas of £0.6 million (2016 £0.2 million} were past due but not impaired.

20%7 2016
Past due but not impaired £m £m
Less than 3 months 0.1 0.1
Between 3 and 6 months 0.4 0.1
Between 6 and 12 months 0.1
0.6 0.2
8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The table below sets out the carrying amount and fair value of the company's financial instruments.
2017 2016
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
Notes £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Receivables {a) 50.4 50.4 59.2 59.2
Cash {b) 13.7 13.7 - -
Financial liabilities
Loans and other borrowings {) {1,073.7) (1,372.3} {1,039.9) {1,185.9)
Payables {a) {60.4) (60.4) {66.3) {66.3)

The carrying amount of these financlal instruments Is calculated as set out in Note 2F. With the exceptien of loans and other borrowings, the carrying
value of financial assets and liabilities is a reasonable approximation of falr vatue. The fair value of loans and other borrowings is calculated as set out in

footnote (c).

(a) Balances putwith the scope of IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosure’ have been excluded, namely other tax receivables, payments received on

account and other taxes and social security.

(h) Asa general rule, cash deposited with banks earns Interest at rates similar to market rates on daily deposits. Cash as at 31 March 2017 includes
deposits with banks of £13.7 million (2016 £nil) in respect of ring-fenced funds received from third parties for use on specific innovation projects

and are not available to finance tha company's day-to-day operations.

(c) The carrying value of loans and other borrowings are accounted for at amortised cost. The carrying value of short-term debt is a reasonable
approximation of fair value. The fair value of long-term debt is calculated using a discounted cashflow with the exception of the £350 million euro-
sterling bond, which s valued using the most recently traded price to the year end date.

9  LIQUIDITY ANALYSIS
Maturity profile of financial liabilities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted

payments,
2017
2023 and
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 thereafter Total
Cash outflows £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Loans and other borrowings 182.9 211.3 58.7 131.1 56.5 873.8 1,524.3
Payables* 47.4 - - - - - 47.4
240.3 211.3 58,7 131.1 56.5 873.8 1,571.7
2016
2022 and
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 thereafter Tatal
Cash outfiows £m £m £m £m £m £m fm
Loans and other horrowings 136.4 60.4 207.8 54.2 126.6 827.3 1,412.7
Payables* 47.2 - - - - - 47.2
183.6 60.4 207.8 54.2 126.6 827.3 1,459.9

*Contractual cash flows exclude accrued interest as these cash flows are included within loans and other borrowings.
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10 SHARE CAPITAL

2017 2016
£m £m
Authorised:
600,000,000 ordinary shares of 50p each {2016 600,000,000) 300.0 300.0
Allotted, cailed up and fully paid shares:
600,000,000 ordinary shares of 50p each {2016 600,000,000} 300.0 300.0
11 ANALYSIS OF MOVEMENTS IN EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF SP MANWEB PLC
Ordinary Share Other Retained
share premium reserves earnings
capital {Note [a}) [Note (b)) {Note [¢)) Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2015 300.0 3.3 6.0 545.8 855.1
Profit for the year atiributable to equity holders of SP Manweb plc - - - 139.6 139.6
Dividends - - - (45.0}) {45.0)
At 1 April 2016 300.0 1.3 6.0 640.4 949.7
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of SP Manweb plc - - - 99.2 99.2
Dividends - - - (26.0) {26.0)
At 31 March 2017 300.0 3.3 6.0 713.6 1,022.9

{a) The share premium account represents consideration received for shares issued in excess of thelr nominal amount.
{b) Other reserves is @ capital redemption reserve and comprises the nominal value of the company's ordinary share capital purchased by the

company in previous years,

{c} Retalned earnings comprise the cumulative balance of profits and losses recognised in the financial statements as adjusted for transactions with

shareholders, principally dividends.

12 DEFERRED INCOME

At Receivable Released At

1 April during to income 31 March

2015 year staternent 2016

Year ended 31 March 2016 fm £m £m £m
Transfer of assets from customers 365.3 39.5 (12.0) 392.8
At Receivable Released At

1 April during to income 31 March

2016 year statement 2017

Year ended 31 March 2017 £m £m £m fm
Transfer of assets from customers 392.8 43,9 (12.9) 423.8

13 OTHER PROVISIONS

At Utilised At

1 April during 31 March

2015 year 2016

Year ended 31 March 2016 Note £m fm £m
Environmental costs (a} 0.3 (0.3} -

At At

1 April New 31 March

2016 provisions 2017

Year ended 31 March 2017 Note £m £rn £m
Onerous contracts (b} - 0.9 0.9
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13 OTHER PROVISIONS continued
2017 2016
Analysis of total provisions £m £m
Non-current 0.8 -
Current 0.1 -
0.9 -

{a) The provision for environmental costs related to obligations under the Control of Asbestos at Work Regulations, The proviston was fully utilised in

the regulatory year 2015/15,

(b) The provision for onerous contracts relates to an onerous fease and is expected to be utifised between 2017 and 2027.

14 LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(a) Analysis of loans and other borrowings by instrument and maturity

2017 2016
[nstrument Notes Interest rate* Maturity £m fm
Bank overdraft {1 Base + 1% On demand - 0.3
Loans with group companies - SPUK {i) Base+ 1% On demand 129.1 04
Loans with group companies - SPL 3.858% 29 January 2019 75.0 75.0
Loans with group companies - SPUK (i), (i 3.416% 21 December 2022 165.0 220.0
Loans with group companies - SPUK {in, (v} 3.570% 20 December 2023 88.0 88.0
Loans with group companies - SPUK (i), (v} 2.821% 31 March 2025 160.0 200.0
£350m euro-sterling bond (wi), {vii} 4.875% 20 September 2027 346.6 346.2
Loans with group companies - SPUK (i}, () LIBOR + 3.365% 28 Jlanuary 2029 110.0 110.0
1,073.7 1,039.9

*Base - Bank of England Base Rate; LIBOR - London Inter-Bank Offer Rate
2017 2016
Analysis of total loans and other borrowings £fm £m
Non-current 922.9 944.5
Current 150.8 95.4
1,073.7 1,039.9

{n
(i

(i)
(iv)
v
{vil

{vil)

{b)

A 1% increase in Base rate and LIBOR rate would result in a £2.4 milllan increase in the full year interest charge.

tnder the conditions of the long term loan agreements between the company and SPUK, the company has an option, without fee or penalty, to
make a repayment in whole or in part, of the then outstanding loan princlpal, plus accrued Interest thereon, by providing SPUK with written
neotice at least five business days before the Intended repayment date.

The intercompany loan with SPUK that Is repayable in December 2022, is repayable in equal instalments on a bi-annual basis, The repayment of
£55.0 million that was due in 2016 is classified as current In the 2016 analysis above.

The intercompany loan with SPUK that is repayable in December 2023, is repayable in equal Instalments on a bi-annual basis. The repayment of
£22.0 million that Is due In 2017 has been classified as current in the 2017 analysis above,

The intercompany loan with SPUX that Is repayable In March 2025, Is repayable In equal instalments on a bi-annual basis, The repayment of
£40.0 million that was due in March 2017 is classified as current in the 2016 analysis above.

The £350 million euro-sterling bond will be redeemed as its principal amount on 20 September 2027 unless previously redeemed or purchased
and cancelled. The bond can be redeemed at any time by ScottishPower at a higher redemption price (3s determined by a financlal advisor
appointed by ScottishPower and Guarantor) giving 30 to 60 days’ notice. The bond is shown net of finance costs, with £(0.3} million (2016 £{0.3)
million) being classified as current in the aralysis above. This bond contains 3 ‘Loss of licences’ cavenant that will require repayment of the
outstanding amount should the company lose its relevant licences.

This bond contains a ‘Loss of licences’ ¢ovenant that will require repayment of the outstanding amount should the company lose its relevant
liceaces.

Borrowing facilities

The company has no undrawn committed borrowing facilities at 31 March 2017 (2016 £nil}.
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15 DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax provided in the Accounts is as follows:
Property,

plant and
equipment
£m

169.8
{10.7)
159.1
{0.8)
158.3

At 1 April 2015

Credit to income statement
At 1 April 2016

Credit to income statement
At 31 March 2017

{a} At 31 March 2017, the company had unutilised capital losses of £12.8 million (2016 £12.8 million). No deferred tax asset has been recognised In

the Accounts due to the unpredictability of suitable future profit streams against which these losses may be utilised.
(b) Legislation has been enacted to reduce the rate of UK Corporation Tax to 19% on 1 April 2017 and to 17% on 1 April 2020. These changes reduce

the tax rates expected to apply when temporary differences reverse and impact the deferred tax charge.

16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2017 2016
Note £m £m

Current trade and other payables:
Payables due to Iberdrola group companies - trade 34.0 311
Payables due to lberdrola group companies - interest 4.0 10.0
Payables due to lberdrola group companies - other (a) 4.6 8.6
Other taxes and social security 10.1 11.7
Payments received on account 72.8 58.5
Other payables (a) 17.8 16.6
143.3 136.5

a) Tihe company utilises forms of collateral to manage its credit exposure in respect of the provision of network services. All collateral held is settled
In cash. At 31 March 2017, the company held cash collateral of £6.5 miffion {2016 £10.9 million), of which £4.6 million (2016 £8.6 million) is

payable to Iberdrola group companies.

17 EMPLOYEE INFORMATION
(a) Staff costs

2017 2016

£m £m

Wages and salaries 0.6 0.7
Sociaf security costs 0.1 0.1
Pension and other costs 0.2 0.2
0.9 1.0

Total staff costs

{1) The employee costs do not Include the directors of the company as they do not have a contract of service with the company. The emoluments of
all directors are included within the employee costs of other ScottishPower group companies. Details of directors' emolumeants are set out in Note

25,

(b) Employee numbers .
The year end and average numbers of employees {full and part-time} employed by the company, excluding executive

directors, were:

Year end Average Year end Average
2017 2017 2016 2016
Administrative staff 9 11 12 13

The year end and average numbers of full time equivalent staff employed by the company match those stated above.,

{c) Pensions
The company’s contributions payable in the year were £162,100 (2016 £184,600). The company contributes 1o the

ScottishPower group's defined benefit and defined contribution schemes in the UK. Full details of these schemes are
provided in the mast recent Annual Report and Accounts of SPL, As at 31 December 20186, the deficit in ScottishPower's
defined benefit schemes in the UK amounted to £442.5 million (2015 £264.4 million). The employer contribution rate for
these schemes in the year ended 31 December 2016 was 30.1% - 31.0%.
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18 TAXES OTHER THAN INCOME TAX

2017 2016
£m £m
Property taxes 15.0 14.7
19 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION CHARGE, ALLOWANCES AND PROVISIONS
2017 2016
£m £m
Property, plant and equipment depreciation charge 89.0 86.5
Charges and provisions, allowances and impairment of assets 1.1 0.8
90.1 87.3
20 FINANCE INCOME
2017 2016
£m £m
Interest receivable from lberdrola group companies 0.1 0.7
21 FINANCE COSTS
2017 2016
£m £m
interest on amounts due to Iberdrola group companies 239 24.7
Interest on other borrowings 17.3 17.4
41.2 42,1
22 INCOME TAX
2017 2016
£fm f£m
Current tax:
UK Corporation tax 15.3 23.7
Adjustments in respect of prior years 1.4} {0.5)
Current tax for the year 13.9 23.2
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 7.4 7.1
Adjustments in respect of prior'years 1.3 0.5
Impact of tax rate change {9.5) (18.3)
Deferred tax for the year {0.8} {10.7)
Income tax charge for the year 13.1 12.5

The tax expense on profit on ordinary activities for the year varied from the standard rate of UK Corporation tax as

follows:
2017 2016
£m £m
Corporation tax at 20% {2016 20%) 225 304
Adjustments in respect of prior periods {0.1) -
Impact of tax rate change {9.5) {18.3)
Impact of changes in headline corporation tax rate - 0.2
QOther permanent differences 0.2 0.2
Income tax charge for the year 13.1 12,5

The rate of UK Corporation Tax reduced from 21% to 20% on 1 April 2015. Legislation has been enacted to reduce the rate of UK Corporation Tax to
19% on 1 April 2017 and to 17% on 1 April 2020. These changes reduce the tax rates expected to apply when temporary differances reverse and impact

the deferred tax charge.

34




SP MANWEB PLC
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued
31 March 2017

23 DIVIDENDS
2017 2016
pence per ordinary  pence per ordinary 2017 2016
share share £m £m
Interim dividend paid 4.3 7.5 26.0 45,0
24 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
Other contractual commitments
2017 2016
£m £m
Provision of asset management services from Powar Systems 82.4 80.5

The contract In place far the provision for asset management services provided by Power Systems expires on 31 December 2017,

25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
{a} Transactions and balances arising in the normal course of business

2017 2016
Other Other
UK Immediate Iberdrola UK Immediate Iberdrola
parent parent group parent parent group
{SPL) {SPENH} companies (sPL) {SPENH)  companies
£m £ £m £m £m £m
Types of transaction

Sales and rendering of services - - 66.7 - - 819
Purchases and receipt of services - - (87.2) - - (82.1)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment - - (215.8) - - {214.7)
Interest income - - 0.1 - - 0.7
Interest costs (2.9} - {21.0) {2.9) - (21.8)
Dividends paid - {26.0) - - {45.0) -

Balances outstanding
Trade and other receivables - - 10.1 - - 11,7
Loans payable (75.0) - (652.1) (75.0) “ (618.4)
Trade and other payables (0.1) - {38.5) (0.1) - {29.86)
Interest payable {0.5) - {3.5) {0.5) - {3.5)

{i}  During the year SPUK made pension contributions of £162,100 {2016 £184,600) on behalf of the company.
{il}  The amounts outstanding are unsecured and wilt be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or received.

{b) Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the key management personnel of the company is set out below. As all of the key management
personnel are remunerated for their work for the ScottishPower group, it has not been possible to apportion the
remuneration specifically in respect of services to this company. All of the key management personnel were
remunerated by other ScottishPower group companies.

2017 2016

£000 £000

Short-term employee benefits 1,670 1,707
Post-employment benefits ) 281 442
Share-based payments 122 570
2,073 2,719

(c) Directors' remuneration

The total remuneration of the directors that provided qualifying services to the company are shown below. As these
directors are remunerated for their work for the ScottishPower group, it has not been possible to apportion the
remuneration specifically in respect of services to this company. All of the directors were remunerated by another
ScottishPower group company.
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25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued
(¢} Directors’' remuneration continued

2017 2016
Executive directors £000 £000
Aggregate remuneration in respect of qualifying services 1,018 997
Number of directors who exercised share options 2 2
Number of directors who recelved shares under a long-term incentive scheme - 2
Number of directors accruing retirement benefits under a defined benefit scheme 2 2

2017 2016
Highest paid director £000 £000
Aggregate remuneration 614 580
Accrued pension benefit 92 89

{i}  The highest paid directer received shares under a long-term incentive scheme during 2016 only.
{i}  The highest paid director exerclsed share options during both years,

{d) Ultimate parent company and immediate parent company

The directors regard Iberdrola, 5.A. as the ultimate parent company, which is also the parent company of the largest
group in which the results of the company are consolidated. The parent company of the smallest group in which the
resutts of the company are consolidated is SPENH.

Copies of the Consolidated Accounts of lberdrola, $.A. may be obtained from Iberdrola, S.A. at its registered office; Torre
Iberdrola, Plaza Euskadi 5, 48009, Bilbao, Spain. Copies of the Consolldated Accounts of SPENH may be obtained from
Scottish Power Energy Networks Holdings Limited at its registered office; Ochil House, 10 Technology Avenue, Hamilton
International Technology Park, Blantyre G72 OHT, Scotiand.

26 AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

2017 2016
£m £m
Audit of the company's annual accounts and regulatory accounts 0.1 0.1

27 GOING CONCERN
The company’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and position, are set
out in the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 9.

The company has recorded a profit after tax in both the current year and previous financial year and the company's
balance sheet shows that it has net current liabilities of £238.3 millien and net assets of £1,022.9 million at its most
recent balance sheet date.

The company is ultimately owned by tberdrola, S.A. and it participates in the Iberdrola group’s centralfsed treasury
arrangements and so shares banking facilities with its parent companies and fellow subsidiaries. As a consequence, the
company depends, in part, on the ability of the Iberdrola group to continue as a going concern. The directors have
considered the company’s funding relationship with Iberdrola to date and have considered available relevant
informaticn relating to Iberdrola’s ability to continue as a going concern. In addition, the directors have no reason to
believe that the Iberdrola group will not continue to fund the company, should it become necessary, to enable it to
continue in operational existence,

On the basis of these considerations, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company will be able to

continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, Therefore, they continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting in preparing the Accounts,
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